
Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

 Willamina City Council Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, July 16, 2019, 6:00 pm 

West Valley Fire Station 
825 NE Main St. 

Willamina, OR 97396 
Revised 7/15/2019 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL  

FLAG SALUTE 

AGENDA ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, AND CORRECTIONS 

PUBLIC INPUT – BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE 

Public Input: Presentations not scheduled on the Agenda are limited to three (3) minutes. 
Longer presentations should be submitted to the City Recorder before the meeting. 
Anyone wishing to comment on an item of the Regular Agenda will need to sign in on the 
sign in form. 

CORRESPONDENCE – none 

CONSENT AGENDA   “(A listing of routine business items, which are adopted with one 
motion, without discussion. However, any COUNCILOR may request that an item be pulled 
from the Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action. The item is then not 
considered after the Consent Agenda items have been voted upon).” 

1. Check Registers – May 1 to 31, 2019 (informational)
2. Financials May 31, 2019 (informational)
3. Minutes from the June 4, 2019 City Council Meeting
4. Minutes from the July 1, 2019 Special City Council Meeting

REGULAR AGENDA 

1. Personnel Policy Variance
2. City Flower Project
3. Library Board Appointment

1



Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS (Items that require no Council action) - none 

MAYORS REPORT 

COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 

1. Cemetery Committee Liaison (Councilor Baller) 
2. Chamber Liaison (Councilor Wooden) 
3. Library Liaison (Councilor Lawson) 
4. YCOM Board (Councilor Baller) 
5. Yamhill County Transit Authority Board Member (Councilor Johnson) 

 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS FROM CITY OFFICERS 

6. City Manager 
7. Sheriff’s Report 
 

EVENT CALENDAR- Informational 

 

 

 
 

 

 

2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSET AGENDA 

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



1 
 

June 4, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

City Of Willamina 
Minutes of the Meeting of the City Council 

June 4, 2019 
6:00 PM 

  
Location of Meeting: 
West Valley Fire District 
825 NE Main St 
Willamina, Oregon 97396 
  
Present at Meeting:  
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Council President Rita Baller 
Councilor April Wooden 
Councilor Theresa McKnight 
Councilor Bob Burr 
Councilor Craig Johnson 
Councilor Roberta Lawson 
City Manager Kenna West 
Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard 
Public Works Director Jeff Brown 
News-Register Reporter Paul Daliquante 
Guest:  
Al McCandless 
Ken McCandless 
Loree Havel 
Arthur Schwartz 
Dave Larmouth Western Oregon Waste 
  
The regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Willamina was called to order at 6:00 PM 
on June 4, 2019 at the West Valley Fire District by Mayor Ila Skyberg. The Flag Salute was 
recited. The Deputy City Recorder took roll call, and a quorum was present.  
  

I. Approval of Agenda 
  
The agenda for the meeting was distributed and unanimously approved.  
  

II. Review of Previous Minutes 
  
The minutes of the previous meeting were reviewed and unanimously approved. 
  

III. Consideration of Open Issues 
  

1. Agenda Deletions, Corrections And Additions 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 

47



2 
 

June 4, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Mayor Skyberg announced an Amendment to the Agreement between the City of 
Willamina and Keller Associates, Inc. as an addition to the Agenda and entered it on the 
Regular Agenda under Numer 7. 
  

2. Public Input 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called for Ken McCandless under the public comment to speak. Mr. 
McCandles introduced a copy of notes he created which he wanted to address with 
Council regarding his property land use.  
 
City Manager West responded to Mr. McCandles and advised him he could not discuss a 
case that was going to the Planning Commission in front of the members of City Council 
because the City Council is the appellate body for the Planning Commission. She 
recommended Mr. McCandless not continue. Mr. McCandless said he would then leave 
and left the meeting.  
 
Arthur Schwartz and Loree Havel were next to speak under Public Input. Mr. Schwartz of 
West Valley Visioning shared that their dinner held in Sheridan had been well 
attended. Mr. Schwartz invited all who are interested in the next event to attend.  He also 
encouraged the Mayor and Council to attend their public meetings held on Thursdays 
between 3:30 to 4:30 PM at Willamina City Hall Old Council Chambers Conference 
Room.  
  

3. Consent Agenda 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called for Council President Rita Baller to read the items on the Consent 
Agenda. Mayor Skyberg asked for a motion. 
 
Council President Baller stated four items were on the consent agenda.  
 
1. Check Registers – April 1 to 31, 2019 
2. Financials April 31, 2019 
3. Minutes from the May 14, 2019 City Council Meeting 
4. Consideration of the use of the Tina Miller Park for the Summer Food Program 

Willamina School District 30-44-63J 

MOTION: Councilor Rita Baller moved to approve the items on the consent agenda. 
Councilor Wooden seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, 
Wooden, McKnight, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  

4. Council of Governments Contract 
Mayor Ila Skyberg  
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “shall the City Council authorize the City Manager to 
execute the Land Use Planning Services Contract with the Mid-Willamette Valley 
Council of Governments on behalf of the City of Willamina? 
 
MOTION: Councilor Johnson moved that the City Council authorize the City Manager to 

48



3 
 

June 4, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

sign the Land Use Planning Contract on behalf of the City of Willamina. Councilor 
McKnight seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Wooden, McKnight, 
Baller, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  
  

5. City of Willamina Excessive Force Policy 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “shall City Council approve Resolution 18-19-021 
adopting an excessive force policy? 
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved to approve Resolution 18-19-021 adopting an 
excessive force policy. Councilor McKnight seconded the motion. Motion carried with 
Councilors Wooden, McKnight, Baller, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  
  

6. Resolution No. 18-19-022 Supporting Fair Housing 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 18-19-
022 supporting fair housing?  
 
MOTION: Councilor McKnight moved that the City Council adopt Resolution 18-19-
022 supporting fair housing. Council Baller seconded the motion. Motion carried with 
Councilors Wooden, McKnight, Baller, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  
  

7. City of Willamina Master Fee Schedule  
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “shall the City Council adopt Resolution 18-19-023 
approving a City Master Fee Schedule.  
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved that the Council adopt Resolution 18-19-023 
approving the City of Willamina Master Fee Schedule as attached thereto. Councilor 
Johnson seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Wooden, McKnight, 
Baller, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  
 
Councilor Johnson commented that the fee schedule is something that can be used by 
contractors that come to the City needing that information.  
 
City Manager West complimented the Deputy City Recorder for her hard work in 
developing the Master Fee Schedule.  
  

8. Resolution in Support of the City's Application for a 2019 Transportation and Growth 
Management Grant 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “shall City Council adopt Resolution No. 18-19-024 
approving and supporting the City of Willamina's application for a 2019 Transportation 
and Growth Management Grant from the Oregon Department of Transportation? 
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved to adopt Resolution No. 18-19-024 supporting the 
City's application for a 2019 TMG Grant. Councilor McKnight seconded the motion. 

49



4 
 

June 4, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Motion carried with Councilors Wooden, McKnight, Baller, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson 
all in favor.  
 
Councilor Johnson thanked the City Manager and her team for applying for the Grant.  
 
City Manager West commented that livability is Council’s highest priority goal for the 
year and that safe and sufficient streets fell directly within that Council goal.  
  

9. Agreement for Police Services with Yamhill County 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “shall the City Council authorize the Mayor and City 
Manager to execute the attached Agreement for Police Services with Yamhill County on 
behalf of the City of Willamina? 
 
MOTION: Councilor Johnson moved that the City Council authorize the Mayor and City 
Manager to sign the attached Agreement for Police Services on behalf of the City of 
Willamina. Councilor McKnight seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors 
Wooden, McKnight, Baller, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING - Mayor Skyberg closed the Regular Session and opened the Public 
Hearing on the proposed uses of State Revenue Sharing Funds in the FY 2019-2020 
Budget. Mayor Skyberg read from a script and asked for general testimony and questions 
or comments. There was none.  
  

10. City's Election to Receive State Revenue 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, "shall City Council approve Resolution 18-19-017 
declaring the City's election to receive State Revenue Funds? 
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved to approve Resolution 18-19-017. Councilor Baller 
seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Wooden, McKnight, Baller, Burr, 
Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  

 
11. Resolution 18-19-018 Certifying the City provides four or more services 

Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “shall the City Council approve Resolution 18-19-
018 declaring that the City of Willamina provides four or more services in accordance 
with ORS 221.760.  
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved to approve Resolution 18-19-018 declaring the 
City provides four or more services and meets the eligibility to receive state funds. 
Councilor McKnight seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Wooden, 
McKnight, Baller, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  
 
NEXT PUBLIC HEARING - Mayor Skyberg read from a public hearing script to open 
the public hearing on FY 2019-2020 Budget as approved by the Budget Committee on 

50



5 
 

June 4, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

May 21, 2019. Mayor Skyberg asked for general testimony and questions or comments 
from the Council. There was none.  

 
12. The Fiscal Year 2019-2020 City of Willamina Approved Budget Resolution 18-19-019 

Mayor Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “shall City Council approve Resolution 18-19-019, 
adopting the 2019-2020 Budget, as amended, making appropriations and imposing and 
categorizing taxes in accordance with ORS 294.456? 

  
MOTION: Councilor McKnight moved to approve Resolution 18-19-019, adopting the 
2019-2020 Budget, making appropriations, imposing, and categorizing taxes in 
accordance with ORS 294.456, and imposing the tax rate at $4.2039 per $1,000. 
Councilor Baller seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Wooden, 
McKnight, Baller, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  
 
NEXT PUBLIC HEARING - Mayor Skyberg then opened the next public hearing and 
read from a script on the proposed 2.7% rate increase for Recology Western Oregon 
effective July 1, 2019. Mayor Skyberg called for testimony from proponents. Dave 
Larmouth from Recology Western Oregon spoke to the City Council. He explained the 
rate increase is based on the consumer price index. He also detailed the city has 689 carts 
and 87 large containers in the City.     
 
Mayor Skyberg asked for testimony from opponents and general testimony. There was 
none. 

 
13. RWO Western Oregon Waste Proposed Rates Resolution 18-19-020 

Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “shall City Council approve Resolution 18-19-020 
approving the proposed 2.70% collections rate increase presented by Recology Western 
Oregon? 
 
MOTION: Councilor Johnson moved to approve Resolution 18-19-020 approving the 
proposed Recology Western Oregon rate increase as presented. Councilor Wooden 
seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Wooden, McKnight, Baller, Burr, 
Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  
 
Mayor Skyberg closed the public hearings and return to Regular Session.  

 
14. Mayors Report 

Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg reported that on May 24th she and the City Manager attended the 
Firehouse Subs Grant Award Presentation Ceremony in McMinnville. The West Valley 
Fire Station was awarded a nearly $35,000 Grant to address their  Portable Radio needs. 
In addition, Mayor Skyberg attended the Mayors Dinner in Dayton.  
 

15. Council Liaison Reports 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 

51



6 
 

June 4, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Mayor Skyberg called for reports.  
Cemetery Committee Liaison Baller thanked Jeff for the clean-up at the cemetery. Jeff 
responded that it was the County Crew who did the clean-up in preparation of the 
Memorial Day Holiday.  
 
Chamber Liaison Wooden reported on several calendar events: 
 

1. June 22 – City Wide Cleanup Day 
2. June 29 – Mud Drags 
3. July 4th – 70th Old Fashioned 4th of July Celebration  
4. July 19-20 – City Wide Garage Sales 
5. September 14, - Bridge the Gap 
6. November 8-9 Willamina Coastal Hills 28th Art Tour & Quilt 

Show 
7. January 25th, 2020 – Formal Mayor’s Ball 

 
Liaison Wooden also reported that the Chamber members were very positive about the 
City’s acquiring the 1940’s Fire Engine from the West Valley Fire District. 
 
Library Liaison Lawson reported that the Library Manager’s office is not finished yet. 
Jeff commented that this Friday is the target completion date.  
 
YCOM Liaison Baller reported their meeting is next week.  
 
Transportation Liaison Johnson reported he had been welcomed to continue on the 
Board.  
 

16. Informational Reports from City Officers 
 
City Manager West reported that the flower poles are up on Main Street. Jeff coordinated 
the flowers going up on Thursday.  The City Manager said she applied for the Nike Grant 
on behalf of the City.  The focus of the grant was to obtain a wheelchair accessible 
merry-go-round and a “toddler” slide for the Tina Miller Park.  
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved to adjourn. Councilor McKnight seconded the 
motion. Motion carried with Councilors Wooden, McKnight, Baller, Burr, Johnson, and 
Lawson all in favor.  

  
IV. Agenda and Time of Next Meeting 

  
The next meeting is a Special Meeting and will be held at 9:00 AM on July 1, 2019 at:  
West Valley Fire Station 
825 NE Main St 
Willamina, Oregon 97396 
 
The next regular meeting will be held at 6:00 PM on July 16, 2019 at: 
West Valley Fire Station 

52



7 
 

June 4, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

825 NE Main Street 
Willamina, Oregon  97396 
 
Mayor Ila Skyberg adjourned the meeting at 8:00 PM 
  
Minutes submitted by Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard 
___________________________________________________ 
 
Minutes approved by Mayor Ila Skyberg 
_________________________________________________ 

53



1 

July 1, 2019 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 

City Of Willamina  
Minutes of Special City Council Meeting 

July 1, 2019 
9:00 AM 

Location of Meeting: 
West Valley Fire District 
825 NE Main St 
Willamina, Oregon 97396 

Present at Meeting:  
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Councilor Theresa McKnight 
Councilor April Wooden 
Councilor Bob Burr 
Councilor Roberta Lawson 
City Manager Kenna West 
Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard 
Public Works Director Jeff Brown 
Library Director Sarah Frost 

Mayor Ila Skyberg called the City of Willamina Special City Council meeting to order at 9:00 
AM on July 1, 2019 at the West Valley Fire District. Mayor Skyberg led in the flag salute. The 
Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard took the roll call and a quorum was present.  

I. Approval of Agenda 

The agenda for the meeting was distributed and unanimously approved. 

II. Consideration of Open Issues

1. Consent Agenda
Mayor Ila Skyberg
Mayor Skyberg called for the items on the Consent Agenda and asked for a motion.

MOTION: Councilor Burr moved to approve the items on the consent agenda. Councilor
Lawson seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Burr, Wooden, McKnight
and Lawson all in favor.

54

Absent: Council President Rita Baller
  Councilor Craig Johnson 



2 
 

July 1, 2019 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Councilor Burr stated the item on the consent agenda is Insurance Coverage Renewal 
2019/2020.  
  

2. Resolution No. 18-19-025 A Resolution Adopting A Section 3 Plan and Limited English 
Proficiency Language Access Plan 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, "shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 18-19-
025 adopting a Section 3 Plan and a Limited English Proficiency Language Access Plan?  
 
MOTION: Councilor Burr moved that Council adopt Resolution 18-19-025 adopting a 
Section 3 Plan and Limited English Proficiency Language Access Plan.  Councilor 
McKnight seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Burr, Wooden, 
McKnight, and Lawson all in favor.  
  
Discussion: Councilor Burr said when we deal with the Federal government there are 
strings attached like the Section 3-Limited English Proficiency Plan and noted the Davis 
Beacon Act required every city to pay prevailing wages which then cost the tax payers 
more money.  
 

3. Resolution No. 18-19-026 A Resolution Designating The West Valley Enterprise Zone 
for Electronic Commerce  
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, "shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 18-19-
026 designating the West Valley Enterprise Zone for Electronic Commerce?  
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved to adopt Resolution No. 18-19-026 designating the 
West Valley Enterprise Zone for Electronic Commerce. Councilor Burr seconded the 
motion. Motion carried with Councilors Burr, Wooden, McKnight, and Lawson all in 
favor.   
 
Discussion: City Manager West commented the City is uniquely qualified for this zone 
overlay as we are a 10 gig fiber optic City. She also noted that the application is on a first 
come first serve basis with July 1, 2019 being the first date allowed for adoption of this 
Resolution.   
 

4. Resolution 18-19-027 A Resolution Authorizing A Small City Allotment Grant 
Application by the City Of Willamina  
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, "shall City Council approve Resolution 18-19-027 
authorizing a Small City Allotment grant application by the City of Willamina? 
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved to approve Resolution 18-19-027 authorizing a 
Small City Allotment grant application for the Fir Street overlay project by the City of 
Willamina. Councilor Burr seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Burr, 
Wooden, McKnight, and Lawson all in favor.  
  

55



3 
 

July 1, 2019 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

5. Agreement For Community Development Block Grant Administration Assistance with 
The Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, "shall the City Council authorize Mayor Skyberg to 
execute the agreement for Community Development Block Grant Administration 
assistance with the Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments on behalf of the City 
of Willamina.  
 
MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved that the City Council authorize Mayor Skyberg to 
sign the Agreement on behalf of the City of Willamina. Councilor Lawson seconded the 
motion. Motion carried with Councilors Burr, Wooden, McKnight, and Lawson all in 
favor.  
 

6. Informational Reports 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called for the City Manager's report.  
City Manager West reported she has been with the City for 2 ½ years and in that time her 
management team has done an incredible job. She announced that she would be changing 
their titles to reflect the very high level of responsibility they have taken on in their job 
duties. As a result, the Public Works Superintendant will formally change to the Public 
Works Director, Library Manager will change to Library Director, Accountant will 
change to Finance Manager, and the title of Planning Clerk will be added to the Deputy 
City Recorder’s title. .  
 
MOTION: Councilor Burr moved to adjourn, Councilor Wooden seconded the motion. 
Motion carried with Councilors Burr, Wooden, McKnight, and Lawson all in favor.  
  

IV. Agenda and Time of Next Meeting 
  

The next meeting will be held at 6:00 PM on July 16, 2019 at:  
West Valley Fire District 
825 NE Main St 
Willamina, Oregon 97396 
  

  
The meeting was adjourned at 9:30 AM by Mayor Ila Skyberg. 
  
Minutes submitted by Deputy City Recorder, Debbie Bernard 
 
___________________________________________________________________. 
  
Minutes approved by Mayor Ila Skyberg 
 
___________________________________________________________________.  

56



REGULAR AGENDA 

57



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JULY 16, 2019 

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: KENNA WEST, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: PERSONNEL POLICY VARIANCE 

ISSUE 

Shall the City Council authorize a one-time variance to the City of Willamina personnel policy 
regarding accrued vacation payout? 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Authorize a one-time variance to the City of Willamina personnel policy regarding accrued 
vacation payout? 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

The adopted City of Willamina personnel policy includes a “use it or lose it” clause within the 
Vacation portion of the policy.  This clause requires that all employees use their vacation, they 
cannot accrue vacation over that allowed by the personnel policy and/or bargaining agreement 
as it will be “lost” if not used, and no payment in lieu of use of vacation or of accrued vacation is 
allowed. 

Employee Health 

There have been many studies over the years that confirm that employees who take vacation 
time are far less likely to “burn out” and are physically healthier than those who do not.  The City 
encourages and, indeed now, requires all employees to follow our adopted personnel policy and 
use their vacation or “lose” it.  City Management understands the very heavy work load of all 
employees, but is also cognizant of the career and health risks that could arise should 
employees not take the necessary rest time in the form of earned vacation. 

Historically, prior City Management did not require staff to take the necessary time off resulting 
in vacation hour “build-up” of more than that allowed by policy.  Now that the policy is being 
followed, the employee is forced into a position of taking large amounts of vacation in a very 
short time or losing the accrued vacation.  In order to not penalize the employee for their diligent 
work over the years and prior City Management’s lack of enforcement, current City 
Management recommends a one-time variance to the adopted personnel policy. 

City Finances 

In addition to the potential adverse career and health effect on our employees, the City too is 
adversely affected by the vacation hour build up.  These hours are considered a “debt” against 
our assets in our annual financial review.  Obviously, this is not something that the City wants to 
see continue.  This is another reason that City Management recommends a one-time variance 
to the adopted personnel policy. 

58



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
For City Council Meeting of July 16, 2019 
Page 2 

Variance Recommendation 

In discussing this issue with Financial and Human Resources professionals, it was 
recommended that the City and employee propose an agreement where the employee is able to 
receive a one-time payment of accrued vacation, but a reduction in the full amount is received in 
consideration for the one-time payment variance.  The employee and City Management have 
crafted a proposed agreement including a 20% reduction in accrued vacation which results in an 
80% vacation accrual payment to the employee. 

The result of this agreement and enforcement of the City’s policies by current City Management, 
is that the employee will no longer be in a “lose it” position in regard to vacation, and the City will 
not carry the current accrued vacation on its financial records in the future. 

FACTS AND FINDINGS 

1. The City’s adopted personnel policy requires vacation be used and does not allow
payment in lieu of vacation taken.

2. Prior City Management did not enforce the required vacation usage which has resulted
in an employee now being in a “use it or lose it” position in regard to accrued vacation.
This results in a hardship on the employee and the City as the employee must take a
great number of vacation days in a very short period of time.

3. The City and the employee have crafted a proposed agreement which includes a 20%
reduction in accrued vacation resulting in an 80% vacation payout to the employee.

Proposed Motion: I move that the City Council authorize a one-time variance to the personnel 
policy in regard to vacation leave payout. 

________________________________________ 
Kenna L. West, City Manager 

Attachments:  None 

59



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JULY 16, 2019 

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: KENNA WEST, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: CITY FLOWER PROJECT 

ISSUE 

Shall the City Council authorize City Management to pursue the possible adoption of a City 
Flower? 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Authorize City Management to pursue the possible adoption of a City Flower. 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

At recent seminars, it has been noted by other City’s staff and citizens that many cities have a 
designated City Flower.  In many of those cities, this flower has become an icon to the citizens 
and is planted in citizen flower gardens as well as City parks. 

In a review of the City of Willamina records, it appears that a City Flower has not been adopted. 
City Management would like to pursue the possibility of adopting a City Flower.  This would 
include research into what other cities have adopted for City Flowers, in order to avoid 
duplication; a request for City Flower nominations being sent out to citizens via the City 
Newsletter, at meetings, via fliers at City Hall and the City Library; and once all nominations 
have been compiled, a staff report being brought to the City Council for their final determination 
on which flower should be adopted as the City Flower. 

Once adopted, the City will plant the City Flower in the City Hall gardens, in our planters, and if 
possible in our Parks.  We will add the City Flower designation to our new website design, and 
in many of the City’s marketing and economic development fliers.  It is hoped that this will be a 
fun process that our citizens can partake in, and perhaps even have their nominated flower 
chosen as our City Flower! 

A City Flower adoption is also very timely.  The City of Willamina received a grant to begin a 
wayfinding project for our beautiful city.  This project will help visitors find recreational 
opportunities in and around our City; locate necessary businesses, services and governmental 
buildings; and will provide a visually appealing integrated signage for the entire West Valley 
region.  We are in the very early stages of this project.  As the process progresses there will be 
at least one public meeting where citizens can share their ideas on those important landmarks 
in our area, on proposed signage design, and on locations for that signage.  As we are 
beginning this wayfinding project, now is a wonderful time to also include the adoption of a City 
Flower as that flower could potentially be incorporated into the signage design and certainly into 
the marketing and economic development materials.   

60



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
For City Council Meeting of July 16, 2019 
Page 2 

FACTS AND FINDINGS 

1. Many cities in Oregon have an adopted City Flower.  A review of the City of Willamina
records doesn’t show an adopted flower for our City.

2. For many of the cities with an adopted City Flower, that flower becomes an icon with the
citizens and City.  It is used in flower gardens, on marketing materials, and in economic
development fliers.

3. If authorized, City Management would follow a process of adoption that would include
reaching out citizens for nominations, making certain the City did not duplicate another
City’s adopted flower, and eventual adoption by the City Council.

4. Now is a particularly good time to begin this process, as the City is currently involved in
a wayfinding project and an adopted City Flower could be utilized in this process.

5. It is the hope of City Management, that this will be a fun, yet not time consuming
process, for our citizens to be involved in and that our beautiful City will have an iconic
City Flower that could be used throughout the City in both citizen and City gardens.

Proposed Motion: I move that the City Council authorize the City Manager to pursue the 
possible adoption of a City Flower. 

________________________________________ 
Kenna L. West, City Manager 

Attachments:  None 

61



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JULY 16, 2019 

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: DEBBIE BERNARD, DEPUTY CITY RECORDER 

SUBJECT: LIBRARY BOARD APPOINTMENT 

ISSUE 

Shall the City Council consider applications for the Library Board and appoint a member to the 
vacancy? 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Review the applicantions for the Library Board and appoint to the Library Board vacancy. 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

The Library Board currently has one vacancy. The Library Board by Charter, as amended and 
approved by the City Council on October 10, 2017, shall consist of a minimum of 5 but no more 
than 7 members appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Council.  

The following applicants have submitted their applications for consideration to the Library Board: 

Evelyn M. Griffey-Huggins 
Kepola Rene Napoleon 

FACTS AND FINDINGS 

1. The Mayor may decide to appoint an applicant to the Library Board, and the Council may
decide to confirm the appointment by motion.

2. The City has received two applications for a vacancy on the Library Board.

Debbie Bernard 
_________________________________________ 
Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder 

Attachments:   
Applications for City Office 

62



63



64

xxxxxxxxxxxx
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx



65



66



67



    City     UCR Description 6/1/2018 to 
6/30/2018

6/1/2019 to 
6/30/2019

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

WILLAMINA

Part 1

Aggravated Assault 0 0 1 5

Arson 1 0 1 4

Burglary-Business 0 0 1 3

Burglary-Non-Residence             0 0 4

Burglary-Residence 1 0 6 6

Larceny 6 3 -50.00 % 29 67

Motor Vehicle Theft-Auto           0 0 3 3

Murder 1 0 1

Rape 0 0 2

Robbery 0 0 1

Part 1 Total 9 3 -66.67 % 41 96

Part 2

All Other 1 0 5 11

Animal Problems 0 0 1

Disorderly Conduct 0 0 6 10

Drug Laws 1 4 300.00 % 19 21

DUII 0 0 4 4

Forgery 0 0 2 5

Fraud 0 0 2 1

Kidnapping 0 0 1

Liquor Laws 0 1 2 3

Runaway 0 0 1 4

Sex Offenses 2 0 4 6

Simple Assault 3 3 19 36

Stolen Property 0 0 1

Tresspass/Prowler 0 0 8 14

Vandalism 2 1 -50.00 % 14 33

Part 2 Total 9 9 86 151

Total For WILLAMINA 41 27 -34.15 % 256 532

Report run date: 7/2/2019

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for WILLAMINA

From 6/1/2019 to 6/30/2019

68



    City     UCR Description 6/1/2018 to 
6/30/2018

6/1/2019 to 
6/30/2019

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

WILLAMINA

Part 3

All Other 8 6 -25.00 % 48 101

Non-Reportable Offenses            15 9 -40.00 % 81 184

Part 3 Total 23 15 -34.78 % 129 285

Total For WILLAMINA 41 27 -34.15 % 256 532

Report run date: 7/2/2019

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for WILLAMINA

From 6/1/2019 to 6/30/2019

69



Yearly Schedule of Events
CITY OF WILLAMNA CITY COUNCIL 

Su M Tu W Th F Sa June
1 06/04/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting NOTE NEW DATE meeting

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 06/11/19 (Tue) No Meeting meeting
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 06/10/19 (Mon) Cemetery Committee Meeting meeting

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 06/16/19 (Sun) Father's Day holiday
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 06/18/19 (Tue) Library Board Meeting meeting
30 06/24/19 (Tue) Special City Council Meeting if needed meeting

06/25/19 (Tue) Planning Commission (moved from June 4th) meeting

Su M Tu W Th F Sa July
1 2 3 4 5 6 07/04/19 (Thu) Independence day - CITY HALL CLOSED holiday

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 07/02/19 (Tues) Planning Commission meeting
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 07/15/19 (Tues) Deadline for filing the LB 50 meeting
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 07/16/19 (Tues) City Council Regular Meeting Note New Date meeting
28 29 30 31

Su M Tu W Th F Sa August
1 2 3 08/06/19 (Tues) Planning Commission Regular Meeting meeting

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 08/13/19 (Tues) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Su M Tu W Th F Sa September
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 09/02/19 (Mon) Labor Day holiday
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 09/03/19 (Tue) Planning Commission Regular Meeting event

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 09/10/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting event
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30

September 2019

August 2019

June 2019

July 2019

70


	1. 2019.07.16.CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
	1.a.CONSENT AGENDA
	2. 05-31-19 Check Register
	3. 05-31-19 Financial Statements
	5. 2019.06.04.CC.REGULAR MEETING MINUTES.doc
	6. 2019.07.01.CC.SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
	6.a.REGULAR AGENDA
	7. Staff Report_Personnel Policy Variance_07.16.2019
	8. Staff Report_City Flower_07.16.2019
	9. Staff Report_Library Board Appointment_07.16.2019 - Copy
	10. Evelyn M. Griffey-Huggins
	11. Kepola Rene Napoleon
	12. Crime Stats by City
	20.21.2019 yearly_schedule_of_events
	Schedule
	Sheet1
	Help
	©




